
 

 
 

 
EXECUTIVE DECISION DAY NOTICE 
 
 
 

Executive Member for Adult Services and Public Health Decision 
Day 
 

Date and Time Thursday, 20th October, 2022 at 10.00 am 
  
Place Remote Decision Day 
  
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk 
  
Carolyn Williamson FCPFA 
Chief Executive 
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ 
 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
This decision day is being held remotely and will be recorded and broadcast live via the 
County Council’s website. 

 
 

AGENDA 
  
DEPUTATIONS 
 
 To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12.  

  
NON KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL) 
  
1. DEMAND MANAGEMENT AND PREVENTION GRANT AWARD  

(Pages 3 - 16) 
 
 To consider a report seeking approval for making grant awards to the 

voluntary and community organisations outlined in the report as part of 
the Demand Management and Prevention Programme. 
  

2. APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES: PARTNERSHIP BOARDS  
(Pages 17 - 18) 

 
 To consider a report regarding appointments to Outside Body 

Partnership Boards. 
 
 
 
 
  

Public Document Pack



KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL) 
  
3. DEREGISTRATION OF YOUNGER ADULTS RESIDENTIAL CARE 

HOMES - RENEWAL OF THE HAMPSHIRE DEREGISTRATION 
PARTNERSHIP REGISTER  (Pages 19 - 36) 

 
 To seek approval to re-procure the Hampshire Deregistration Partnership 

Register to facilitate Hampshire County Council working with residential 
care providers regarding the deregistration of residential care homes for 
younger adults. 
  

Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
 That the public be excluded from the meeting during the following item 

of business, as it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be  
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public  
were present during this item there would be disclosure to them of  
exempt information within Paragraph 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the  
Local Government Act 1972, and further that in all the circumstances of  
the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the  
public interest in disclosing the information, for the reasons set out in the  
appendices. 
  

KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL) 
  
4. DEREGISTRATION OF YOUNGER ADULTS RESIDENTIAL CARE 

HOMES - RENEWAL OF THE HAMPSHIRE DEREGISTRATION 
PARTNERSHIP REGISTER - EXEMPT APPENDIX  (Pages 37 - 44) 

  
NON KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL) 
 
 None. 

 
 
 
 
ABOUT THIS AGENDA: 
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages. 
 
ABOUT THIS MEETING: 
The press and public are welcome to observe the public sessions of the 
decision day via the webcast. 



  

 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Decision Report 
 
Decision Maker: Executive Member for Adult Services and Public Health 

Date: 20 October 2022 

Title: Demand Management and Prevention Grant Award 

Report From: Director of Adults’ Health and Care 

Contact name: 
Sarah Snowdon 
Peter Stokes 

Tel: 0370 779 1037  Email: Peter.Stokes@hants.gov.uk 

 
Purpose of this Report 
1. The purpose of this report is to seek approval for making a grant award to 

the voluntary and community organisations outlined in this report as part of 
the Demand Management and Prevention Programme. 

 
Recommendation(s) 
2. That approval be given by the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and 

Health for the following actions:  
i) To award grants totalling £119,207 to cover a range of time periods 

between December 2022 and March 2024 as part of the Local 
Solutions Fund (as detailed in appendix A). 

 
Executive Summary  
3. This report seeks to… 

• Set out the background to the grants 
• Set out the reason for the recommendations 
• Consider the finance for the project  

 
Contextual information 
Background 
4. The Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) contributes to improving 

people’s quality of life. The grants programme is one of the ways in which 
the County Council supports the sector to support people to live fuller more 
independent lives. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



  

 

5. A voluntary organisation may be considered for grant aid from the County 
Council only if its services, projects or activities are in compliance with the 
aims and objectives, priorities and policies of the County Council. 

6. Grants are awarded to support services that are better provided by the 
voluntary sector e.g. the mobilisation of community resources to help 
vulnerable people maintain their independence. 

7. A grant is defined as a sum of money to support a particular activity.  It does 
not usually cover the entire cost of the activity and it is legally considered to 
be a one-sided gift, rather than a payment in exchange for services. 

8. Voluntary and community organisations provide valuable locally based 
services that are often rooted in the communities which they serve.  
Significant benefit is produced through this activity, often through voluntary 
action and focused towards activity that clearly assists in providing early 
intervention and prevention initiatives.  Grant funding by the County Council 
contributes to, and helps sustain, this activity. 

9. As grants are a contribution to service or activity costs the economic benefit 
to the department can be significant, levering in additional funding, the 
benefit of volunteer time and therefore providing good value for money to the 
authority. 

10. Organisations will not normally be eligible for grants where they hold 
balances in excess of one year's running costs.  Those organisations 
receiving recurring funding which hold in excess of three months' running 
costs, and where they cannot demonstrate through their reserves policy that 
these reserves are justified, may receive a reduced grant.  To establish the 
level of reserves, organisations are required to provide a set of their latest 
accounts and annual report with their application and before grant payment 
is made – in the case of organisations with an income of £10,000 or above, 
these must be independently examined or audited.  If organisations have 
reserves in excess of three months, we will apply the reserves policy which 
is in line with the Charity Commission’s policy on these matters. 

 
Demand and Prevention Programme 
11. Prevention, incorporating Demand Management is one of the three key 

areas identified to achieve the Vision of Adults’ Health and Care, as detailed 
in the Adult’s Health and Care Strategy.  

12. The Demand Management and Prevention work will build on people’s 
strengths, enabling them to improve their health and take more personal 
responsibility for looking after themselves with support from their family, 
friends and community network. The Council will encourage this by making 
the healthy choice the easy choice and developing accessible, inclusive and 
readily available information and advice services. The Council will also carry 
out targeted prevention work for certain groups of people who are most at 
risk of poor health to keep them well and to avoid or delay the need for 
social care services. The Council will work with partners, in particular the 
NHS, GPs and the Voluntary sector to achieve the above aims. 

 

Page 4



  

 

Local Solutions Grant 
13. It is recognised that across Hampshire there are local initiatives, support 

networks and services achieving positive outcomes for adults every day. A 
strength-based approach values these local provisions and seeks to enable 
them to further develop, be sustained and grow. This approach recognises 
that the County Council is often not the only, or the best, source of help for 
local people. 

14. Local Solutions Grants seek to fund projects, which over time will reduce the 
demand seen on Hampshire County Council statutory services and support 
participants to live healthy and independent lives for as long as possible. 
Grants are awarded to projects operating in a specific location with one off 
funding given. All Local Solutions applicants are expected to demonstrate 
how the project will be sustained in the long term, beyond the life of the 
grant. 

15. Services developed though the Local Solutions locality focused approach, 
are likely to enable early prevention support, as well as shaping options 
which may be attractive alternatives to some traditional services currently 
available for individuals, carers and families. The prioritisation of localities to 
focus upon within this approach has been informed by data on 
demographics, existing and projected social care demand, and feedback 
from stakeholders. This will help to ensure that local people have effective 
support available now and into the future. 

16. The focus and criteria for each Local Solution Grant has been shaped by 
engagement with local stakeholders. This engagement has informed 
identification of the local priorities, the outcomes which are important to be 
achieved and the potential type of solution which could be developed. They 
are also aligned to the NHS programme to support self-management, which 
assists individuals to remain independent and minimising their need for 
social care. Some grants are more specific in what is being asked to be 
delivered and others outline more generally the focus of the change 
required. Across all, it will be looked for the successful bidder(s) to ensure 
local insight and expertise continue to shape the support and services as 
they further develop, in order to deliver positive outcomes. Local 
stakeholders and local Adults’ Health and Care Community Teams were 
involved in the decision making to ensure that the grants recommended 
meet the community need. 

17. A rolling program of engagement events have taken place across 2022 and 
will continue into early 2023. With the aim of ensuring all voluntary sector 
organisations are aware of the Local Solutions fund, these events are also 
an opportunity to support organisations with the Local Solutions fund 
process, ensuing there are no barriers in making an application.  

18. In this paper Local Solutions grants are being proposed supporting older and 
vulnerable adults with a range of bespoke solutions and services across 
numerous localities in Hampshire. The grants within this paper reflect the 
innovation, flexibility and project sustainability which are characteristic of 

Page 5



  

 

Local Solutions application and full details of the grants being proposed are 
contained below. 

 
Grants For Consideration (additional Information in Appendix A) 
19.  New Forest Disability (£29,000 for a duration of 12 months). A project 

offering practical and emotional support to New Forest residents on 
discharge from Lymington Hospital. This project aims to ensure that upon 
discharge all users of the service have a robust plan in place for transition 
back to independent living within their own homes, and collaboration with all 
necessary community organisations to provide the best quality long term 
support. 

20. The Vine Centre (£28,207 for a duration of 12 months). A project delivering 
for isolated older adults at increased risk of formal social care intervention 
across the districts of Hart and Rushmoor. Centred around digital upskilling 
and support, the project will deliver both online and face to face support to 
build people's confidence, support networks and ensure they are 
empowered to reconnect to their communities and the support available to 
them there. Repurposed technology will be provided for first time users to 
ensure nobody is excluded from the service. 

21. Citizens Advice Hart (£27,000 for a duration of 12-16 months). A project 
which will enhance the current Citizens Advice offer and increase 
accessibility to those with limited or restricted mobility. Funding will enable 
the creation of local support hubs and an outreach program to residents who 
are housebound or with limited mobility to ensure that all residents are able 
to receive the support they require. 

22. Unity Ltd (£24,000 for a duration of 16 months). A project centred around 
pre-existing allotments which will fund a range of social activities aimed at 
adults aged 75+ with increased risks of requiring formal social care 
intervention. Activities will be driven by the interests and needs of those 
participating and seek to build resilience through increased friendship and 
support networks and improving participants emotional and physical health. 

23. Community First (£11,000 for a duration of 12 months). A project to be run 
by a coordinator and a team of volunteers to work with participants in group 
and one to one sessions across a range of locations. Sessions are 
structured to provide practical solutions to barriers which participants have to 
living independently and safely in their own homes and link with HCC Teams 
and Health Partners to reach those most in need of the service. 

 
Finance 
24. The grant proposal in this report will commit additional expenditure totalling 

£119,207 over the financial years 2022/23 and 2023/24. Subject to approval 
of this report the total grants committed for payment will remain within the 
agreed, (2022/23 & 2023/24) annual budget envelopes for the Demand 
Management and Prevention Programme. 

25. Payments will be made in 2 instalments for all grants approved in this report. 
All Grant Agreements have conditions that enable the County Council to 

Page 6



  

 

require repayment of the award or any part of it if it remains unspent at the 
end of the grant period, or if there is a material breach of the grant 
agreement.  

 
Performance 
26. The provision of grants to voluntary and community sector organisations by 

statutory bodies always presents a degree of risk.  Specific risks that 
statutory bodies are required to manage include voluntary and community 
organisations accepting funding without providing any activity; organisations 
not delivering the service as expected; and there being an under spend on 
the expected activity.  This applies to all grants however larger grants 
represent a potentially higher risk to the County Council.  

27. A number of mechanisms have been employed successfully over a number 
of years to mitigate and alleviate these risks.  These include nominating a 
liaison officer from the County Council whose responsibility is to monitor how 
the grant is spent, specifying within the grant agreement that the grant is 
‘restricted’ funding for the provision of the specified activity only and phasing 
the payment of grants over the course of the award duration.  

28. A comprehensive evaluation assessment tool has been developed and is in 
use for the beneficiaries of previous grant rounds, ensuring consistency of 
data capture. 

29. All organisations awarded a grant sign a declaration stating they accept that 
grant funding can only be awarded for the given period and no commitment 
exists from the County Council to continue funding after this time, or in 
subsequent years.  

 
Consultation and Equalities 
30. It is for the Executive Member as decision maker to have due regard to the 

need to: eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Equality Act and advance equality of 
opportunity and foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.   

31. All grants included for consideration in this report represent additional 
facilities and services for those they serve, and a full Equalities Impact 
Assessment has been completed to capture the benefits for each group. 

32. Through provision of these grants and the completion of the EIA positive 
impacts have been identified for residents with disabilities and those in 
financial hardship and poverty. The grants proposed for funding seek to 
increase the provision for those who identify with these protected 
characteristics and increase the services which are available to them. Other 
protected characteristics have been assessed and the grants offer a neutral 
impact, with no negative impacts expected for any characteristic. 

 
 

 

Page 7



  

 

Climate Impact Assessment 
33. Hampshire County Council utilises two decision-making tools to assess the 

carbon emissions and resilience of its projects and decisions. These tools 
provide a clear, robust, and transparent way of assessing how projects, 
policies and initiatives contribute towards the County Council’s climate 
change targets of being carbon neutral and resilient to the impacts of a 2℃ 
temperature rise by 2050. This process ensures that climate change 
considerations are built into everything the Authority does. 

34. A full assessment of climate change vulnerability was not completed as the 
initial vulnerability assessment showed that the project is at minimal risk from 
the climate vulnerabilities because the projects delivered will be operated 
from premised not owned by the County Council or the organisation in 
receipt of the grant. 

 
Conclusions 
35. The Local Solutions Grant continues to offer local organisations in the 

voluntary and community sector, the opportunity to fund their projects to the 
benefit of local residents in a local way to address the specific needs of 
communities in each district. The grants proposed in this paper have a range 
of benefits and outcomes, but all seek, as a minimum to reduce social 
isolation and loneliness and connect participants to their local communities 
and support networks. 

 
 

Page 8



 

 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 
Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

no 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

no 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

yes 

 
Other Significant Links 

Links to previous Member decisions:  
Title 
Demand Management and Prevention Grant Award 
Demand Management and Prevention Grant Award 
 

Date 
January 2022 
July 2022 

 
 
 
Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 
None  

Page 9



 

 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 

1. Equality Duty 
1.1 The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 

(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

1.2 Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 

sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 
The award of grants to the voluntary and community sector to support people to 
live long, healthy and happy lives with the maximum possible independence, as 
part of the demand management and prevention programme and in-line with 
Adult’s Health and Care Strategy 2018. 
 
Grants in this paper: 
Local Solutions Grants, covering the districts of New Forest, Rushmoor, Hart, Test 
Valley and Winchester for a period December 2022 – December 2023. Total Pot: 
£119,207 
 
Geographical impact: Grants in this paper are recommended for award, which if 
approved will provide additional services, beyond what is already available in the 
districts of: New Forest, Rushmoor, Hart, Test Valley and Winchester 

Page 10



 

 

Proposed Change: The grants proposed in this paper all represent new services 
which were not previously funded and therefore are of additional benefit to those 
they seek to serve. 
The Local Solutions fund continues to offer funding to projects which support a 
diverse range of Hampshire residents, and does so in collaboration with Social 
Care Teams, health partners and the community and voluntary sector. 
As a result of the proposals contained within this Executive Member Decision 
Report we do not anticipate any changes to service provision, rather these are 
extensions to existing services or new services which were not previously 
available. 
Will the proposed project/service change affect people in the protected 
characteristics groups or any of the other groups for consideration? Yes 
Who does this impact assessment cover?: All 
Has engagement or consultation been carried out?: Yes 

Describe the consultation or engagement you have performed or are 
intending to perform:  

The Local Solutions Grant application process is designed to enhance 
collaboration between HCC and the applicant every step of the way. Throughout 
the application process, the grants within this paper were shaped in order to 
ensure the outcomes proposed align with the Adults Health strategy and deliver 
the maximum benefit for participants. 

A key focus for DM&P at the current time is building and strengthening 
relationships with the local districts across Hampshire. The individual districts 
have been consulted with on each project which impacts their locality for their 
thoughts and suggestions to ensure the maximum benefit across multiple levels of 
Local Government. 

Finally various HCC teams have been involved with the shaping of the projects 
outlined in this report, from the LD and PD Teams input into the proposed New 
Forest Disability application to the Social Care Team input into the Unity Project 

Assessment Rationale: All projects included in this report serve, as one of their 
key demographics, older adults in the 70+ age range. The projects included will 
increase support beyond what is already available to support older adults with 
digital inclusion, upskilling and connectivity (The Vine application), reduce social 
isolation and loneliness (Unity and Hart CA applications) and support with 
everyday tasks and planning to increase independent living (New Forest Disability 
and Community First applications)   

Disability social impact: Positive  

Disability staff impact: Neutral  

Page 11



 

 

Assessment Rational: A number of the project proposed in this report will provide 
services for those living with a disability in excess of the provision currently 
available. The New Forest Disability Service will support those with a physical 
disability prior to discharge from hospital, ensuring they have all they need to 
safely transition back to life in their own homes. The CA Hart application proposes 
a more flexible support offering which will be of benefit to those with restricted or 
limited mobility as they will be able to receive advice and support closer to their 
homes then previously. 

Sexual orientation public impact: Neutral  

Sexual orientation staff impact: Neutral  

Assessment rationale: Whilst none of the projects recommended for funding 
specifically support people within this defined characteristic, they are all open to 
those who need support irrespective of sexual orientation. 

Race social impact: Neutral 

Race staff impact: Neutral  

Assessment Rationale: Whilst none of the projects recommended for funding 
specifically support people within this defined characteristic, they are all open to 
those who need support irrespective of race. 

Religion or belief social impact: Neutral  

Religion or belief staff impact: Neutral  

Assessment Rationale: Whilst none of the projects recommended for funding 
specifically support people within this defined characteristic, they are all open to 
those who need support irrespective of religion 

Gender reassignment public impact: Neutral  

Gender reassignment staff impact: Neutral  

Assessment Rationale: Whilst none of the projects recommended for funding 
specifically support people within this defined characteristic, they are all open to 
those who need support irrespective of gender reassignment. 

Sex public impact: Neutral  

Sex staff impact: Neutral  

Assessment rationale: Whilst none of the projects recommended for funding 
specifically support people within this defined characteristic, they are all open to 
those who need support irrespective of sex. 

Page 12



 

 

Marriage or civil partnership: Neutral  

Marriage or civil partnership: Neutral  

Assessment Rationale: Whilst none of the projects recommended for funding 
specifically support people within this defined characteristic, they are all open to 
those who need support irrespective of marital status or civil partnership. 

Pregnancy and maternity public impact: Neutral  

Pregnancy and maternity staff impact: Neutral  

Assessment rationale: Whilst none of the projects recommended for funding 
specifically support people within this defined characteristic, they are all open to 
those who need support irrespective of pregnancy or maternity. 

Poverty public impact: Positive  

Poverty staff impact: Neutral  

Assessment Rationale: All projects recommended for approval in this report 
support people in poverty and financial hardship as part of their offering. The  
most significant additional service for those in poverty will be the CA Hart 
application which seeks to offer financial support and benefits entitlement 
assistance in a more localised way which will be of benefit for those with limited 
mobility or ability to travel. The Vine centre application will support older adults to 
manage their finances and budgets online which will be of benefit to those who 
live in communities with limited access to traditional banking. Finally the New 
Forest Disability Services project will connect those, about to be discharged form 
hospital into a range of financial support services to ensure that they do not return 
home to poverty which could otherwise be avoided. 

Rurality public impact: Neutral  

Rurality staff impact: Neutral  

Assessment rationale: Whilst none of the projects recommended for funding 
specifically support people within this defined characteristic, they are all open to 
those who need support irrespective of rurality or location. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



 

 

APPENDIX A 

LOCAL SOLUTIONS GRANT RECOMMENDAITONS BY AREA 

Grant 1 

Organisation: New Forest Disability 

Project Title: Staying Safe Advocacy Project 

Area: New Forest (Lymington and surrounds) 

Amount: £29,000 (Duration 12 months) 

Project Description: Protect which supports residents around the time of their 
discharge from Lymington Hospital. The aims of the project are to meet with 
patients and their families in the hospital prior to discharge to support, advise and 
arrange in order to ensure the right support is in place for their return home. Upon 
discharge volunteers will meet with the discharged patient on a regular basis to 
ensure they are supported and advocate on their behalf where additional 
provision is needed to ensure independent living. The hospital trust has estimated 
that the number of patients requiring assistance on discharge has increased 45% 
in the past 2 years alone and this service will provide for this additional need an 
ensure people are safe, supported and confident in their own homes. This service 
will provide significant benefit to the individual but also to HCC through a 
reduction in reliance on statutory services with people able to safely return home 
in a safe and provided for way to minimise need for council intervention or an 
increase in social care need which could be avoided. 

Grant 2 

Organisation: The Vine Centre 

Project Title: Stepping Out 

Area: Hart and Rushmoor 

Amount: £28,207 (Duration 12 months) 

Project Description: The Stepping Out project seeks to support vulnerable and 
isolated residents in Hart and Rushmoor with digital skills, practical support and 
outreach in order to reconnect them to their communities and support networks. 
Through a coordinator and a network of volunteers the service will support users 
with practical help both in and outside the home and work to build confidence in 
those requiring it in order to access their wider communities. A key feature of the 
project will be digital upskilling and the provision of repurposed IT equipment in 
order so ensure that people have the tools required to connect in an increasingly 
digital age and not feel that they are isolated due to a lack of these skills. The 

Page 14



 

 

project will run for 12 months with future proofing plans in place to ensure it is 
sustained beyond the life of the grant. 

Grant 3 

Organisation: Hart Citizens Advice 

Project Title: Reach Out and Help Out 

Area: Hart 

Amount: £27,000 (Duration 12 months with option to extend to 16 months 
depending on initial take up) 

Project Description: The Reach Out and Help Out project is one which seeks to 
expand on the current Citizens Advice (CA) provision in Hart with an additional 
outreach service, target chiefly at the 75+ demographic and those who are 
housebound or with restricted mobility. Current CA Hart services are provided out 
of one location and this project will expand this to 15 taking in local community 
venues, libraries and cafes, bringing the service closer to those who need it. 
Home visitation will also be an option for those who are unable to access the 
larger number of site options and this will ensure no vulnerable person is without 
financial, benefits and cost of living support at a time when it is needed more than 
ever. CA Hart plan to team up with a number of cafes in different locations to run 
sessions out of with the goal of connecting people to these community assets and 
supporting in reducing social dislocation and isolation as an additional outcome. 

Grant 4 

Organisation: Unity Ltd 

Project Title: Garden to Health 

Area: Test Valley 

Amount: £24,000 (Duration 16 months) 

Project Description: Project which has been in development for the past 12 
months in collaboration with the local Social Care Teams and is designed to 
support adults with a range of vulnerabilities in the over 70s demographic. The 
project will take place in existing allotments and a community centre and is 
designed to provide activities, social opportunities and mental health support to 
those who participate. If successful the funding will provide for a project 
coordinator to support volunteers and a part time mental health therapist who will 
work with those attending to improve mental health and resilience. A wide range 
of different project will be run which will seek to support different groups of people 
including those with dementia, carers, the recently bereaved and older adults 
experiencing social isolation and loneliness. Weather permitting, activities will be 
based around gardening and will cater to a wide range of abilities, however unlike 

Page 15



 

 

many other gardening projects, during the winter months the project will move 
indoors to offer year round provision. A highlight of the project will be its potential 
to offer respite for carers with fully trained individuals present at activities which 
means carers will be able to leave their loved ones safe in the knowledge that 
they will be safe and doing an activity they enjoy. 

Grant 5 

Organisation: Community First 

Project Title: Support and Advice (75+) 

Area: Winchester 

Amount: £11,000 (Duration 12 months) 

Project Description: Project will employ a part time advisor who will work 
alongside a network of volunteers to support older adults (75+) with a range of 
practical solutions to barriers they face in living independently and safely in their 
own homes. The project will link with health partners, HCC teams and other 
voluntary sector organisations to reach all who require support and will aim to 
reduce reliance on statutory service buy supporting people to remain independent 
and safe in their homes as long as possible. 

Page 16



 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Executive Decision Record 
 

Decision Maker:  Executive Member for Adult Services and Public Health 

Date of Decision: 20 October 2022 

Decision Title:  Appointments to Outside Bodies: Partnership Boards 

Report From:  Chief Executive   

Contact name: Emma Cousins 

Tel: 0370 779 5788 Email: emma.cousins@hants.gov.uk 
 

  
1.  The decision (PROPOSED):  
 
a) In accordance with Part 1: Chapter 12 of the Constitution, that the Executive 

Member for Adult Services and Public Health be requested to make 
appointments to the Partnership Boards as detailed below.  The term of office to 
expire at the County Council elections in May 2025 unless otherwise stated: 
 

 Name of Body 
 

Description Previous 
Representative 
 

Appointments 
until County 
Council 
elections in 
May 2025 

1. Hampshire Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust  
 
Role: Patient Champion 
Governor to the Trust for 
Disabled People 

Public sector NHS 
Foundation Trust 
providing 
healthcare 
services.  

Councillor 
Leeks 
(Basingstoke 
and Deane 
Borough 
Council) 
 

 
 

2. Southern Health NHS 
Foundation Trust  
 
Role: Hampshire County 
Council representative 

NHS Foundation 
Trust providing 
healthcare 
services. 

Councillor 
Humby 

 

 
2.  Reason for the decision: 
 
2.1 To maintain County Council representation on bodies within the community.  

 
3.  Other options considered and rejected: 
 
3.1. Not to make appointments, which would cease County Council representation.  
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 2



 

4.  Conflicts of interest: 
 
4.1. Conflicts of interest declared by the decision-maker: None 
 
4.2. Conflicts of interest declared by other Executive Members consulted: None 
 
5.  Dispensation granted by the Conduct Advisory Panel: None.  
 
6.  Reason(s) for the matter being dealt with if urgent: Not applicable. 
 
7.  Statement from the Decision Maker:  
 
  
 
 
Approved by:  
 
 
 
--------------------------------------------------                Date: 20 October 2022 
Councillor Liz Fairhurst 
Executive Member for Adult Services and 
Public Health 

 

  

Page 18



 

 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

Decision Report 
 

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Adult Services and Public Health 

Date: 20 October 2022 

Title: Deregistration of Younger Adults Residential Care Homes – 
Renewal of the Hampshire Deregistration Partnership 
Register 

Report From: Director of Adults’ Health and Care 

Contact name: Jess Hutchinson, Assistant Director, Younger Adults 

Tel: 0370 779 1037  Email: Jessica.hutchinson@hants.gov.uk 
 

Purpose of this report  

1. The purpose of this paper is to seek approval to re-procure the Hampshire 
Deregistration Partnership Register (HDPR), a bespoke procurement 
solution procured under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 Light Touch 
Regime (‘LTR’) to facilitate Hampshire County Council working with 
residential care providers to effect, the deregistration of residential care 
homes for younger adults and to provide for the award of care and support 
contracts. 

2. This paper is also to seek permission for maximum spend under the HDPR. 
 
Recommendations  
3. That the Executive Member for Adult Services and Public Health approve: 

a) the re-procurement of a bespoke procurement vehicle for the facilitation of 
deregistration or re-provision of Younger Adults Residential Care with a 
maximum duration of 8 years on a 4+4 years basis.  

b) the spend of up to £200 million under the procurement vehicle for care and 
support contracts with a maximum term of 10 years on an initial period of 5 
years plus options with flexibility for yearly extensions or multiples up to a 
maximum of five years (10 years in total). 
 

Executive Summary  
4. This report sets out: 

• the context of the HDPR 

• links to the transformation agenda  

Page 19

Agenda Item 3



 

 

• how de-registration works and suggest opportunities for improving the 
options and outcomes for de-registration 

• the procurement process 

• the financial implications of the HDPR 
 
Contextual information 
5. Deregistration of residential care homes is an option available to all 

providers of residential care subject to the approval of the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC). The HDPR is a means by which the County Council can 
ask registered care homeowners if they are interested in deregistering those 
care homes and may wish to enter into a care and support contract with the 
County Council to continue providing the care and support as ‘supported 
accommodation’ once the home is deregistered. Any regulated care activity 
subsequently required would then be provided under a domiciliary (home) 
care registration with the CQC. 

6.      To date 10 residential care homes have been deregistered through the 
previous HDPR. There have been some challenges which have impacted on 
the programme including engagement from landlords, provider resource 
issues, the Care Quality Commission process for de-registration and impact 
of the pandemic. There remains an appetite from providers to engage in 
deregistration of care homes. Having reviewed the current arrangements 
there are some changes that could be made that it is felt would assist the 
process and improve the outcome.   

7. Hampshire Adult Services’ current external spend on residential and nursing 
care for younger adults is £67 million per annum (Learning Disability - £47 
million, Physical Disability - £11 million and Mental Health £9 million). The 
department has been working for the past 7 years to reduce the number of 
younger adults with eligible care needs living in residential care with some 
success. However, there remains a significant population, particularly of 
people with a learning disability, living in residential care.  

8. Service users in residential care have fewer accommodation rights and less 
access to benefits than those in supported accommodation. Care home 
residents have no security of tenure in their accommodation (most are 
subject to 28 days' notice) and are entitled only to a relatively small amount 
of money for themselves each week. Conversely, service users who reside 
in supported accommodation hold tenancies and have access to a range of 
housing and other benefits, allowing them increased independence in the 
management of their own homes and finances. This model has scope to be 
more enabling and supportive of independence than residential care.   

9. There is still a significant population of people, particularly with learning 
disabilities, living in small scale community-based homes which are 
registered as residential care but could operate as supported 
accommodation giving the service users the opportunities described above. 
A proportion of these properties are not fit for the future. A change of model 
can provide the opportunity for re-development of these Services. 

 

Page 20



 

 

Transformation Agenda 
10. In addition to the above, the Younger Adults Directorate is tasked with 

delivering approximately £22.5 millions of savings as part of the Savings 
Programme 2023 (SP23). Residential care, in addition to being less 
enabling, can be more expensive than community-based accommodation 
and support models such as supported accommodation due to the inclusion 
of hotel and management costs (the overheads associated with running a 
building and operating a business). The County Council has identified 
reduction in residential care placements in favour of such community-based 
accommodation and support models as a key driver in achieving these 
savings. This element of the Savings Programme has delivered in line with 
expected contributions over the savings programmes since 2017.  

11. Deregistration has been a relatively small part of this for the reasons stated 
above. A lot of the properties originally identified to be part of this process 
therefore remain as residential care homes and as such there remains a 
latent opportunity for further efficiencies. Re-procuring the HDPR and 
improving the offer would encourage more providers to come forward to 
support deregistration.  

12.   A key change for the new HDPR would be to increase the care and support 
services contract length in line with contracts being offered under the 
procurement framework for younger adults supported accommodation 
(Hampshire Accommodation Development and Support Options Model 
(HADSOM)) which is up to 10 years on a 5 + up to 5 more basis. This 
increases the attractiveness of the offer and provides more certainty and 
security for providers, particularly if they are carrying out works on or 
replacing a property. This also gives greater assurance to service users and 
their families at a time where they would experience significant change.  

13.   Another key change is to expand the scope of the deregistration scheme to 
allow for the closure of the residential home and the re-provision of the 
property on a more or less like for like basis where there is an opportunity to 
improve the quality of accommodation. This could include replacing a 4-
bedroom 2 storey house with one shared bathroom, with a 4-bedroom 
bungalow with ensuite bathrooms for example or replacing a 3-bedroom 
shared house and a 4-bedroom shared house with a block of 8 individual 
one-bedroom flats. 

14. The County Council recognises there is a continued need for residential care 
in some circumstances and will be developing a Residential Care Strategy 
for Younger Adults over the coming months. Encouraging the deregistration 
of services that do not need to be residential care will be integral to this 
strategy and approach. 

 
Deregistration Approach 
15. Deregistration is the process by which a residential care provider transforms 

a residential care home into a supported accommodation model. This 
involves terminating the property’s registration with Care Quality 
Commission as a residential home, the separation of landlord and care 

Page 21



 

 

functions and the provision of tenancies to service users so that the property 
may be properly classified as their home rather than simply the address at 
which they reside. This in turn gives service users security of tenure in their 
accommodation and access to a much wider range of benefits in order to 
cover housing and living costs previously included in the residential 
placement fee. The separation of the landlord and care functions is a key 
element of deregistration as once a service user gains tenancy rights they 
have the right to remain in their home even if the care provider changes. 

16. The decision to deregister a residential care home rests entirely with the 
provider and in order for providers to consider deregistering their homes they 
must ensure it is financially viable. Providers who have de-registered to date 
have been accepting of a contract for up to 7 years. A longer period may 
encourage more providers, particularly larger organisations, to undertake 
deregistration. Additionally, retention of the care business by the current 
provider allows for continuity of service for those service users involved in 
deregistration.  

17. The intention of the new HDPR would be to expand the scope of opportunity 
for residential homes to be re-provided in alternative and improved settings 
as well as being deregistered in the traditional way. This approach is 
required as a proportion of the properties that would be in scope for 
deregistration older properties and are not fit for the future needs of existing 
residents or future residents. This re-provision opportunity would be 
restricted to ensure that providers were not able to unfairly increase the 
scope of their business and would require the closure of the residential 
establishment from which they were decanting. It is recognised that service 
users and particularly their families find change difficult and find changes 
less challenging if they continue to be supported by individuals and 
organisations with which they are familiar. The County Council would work 
with Providers to ensure any new properties were an improvement. 

18. The County Council’s primary method for the purchase of care and support 
in a supported accommodation setting is via the Hampshire Accommodation 
Development and Support Options Model (HADSOM) which provides for the 
award of care contracts following a mini competition process. This 
procurement method presupposes that support is being procured for an 
existing supported living scheme or one which is entirely brand new rather 
than a requirement which has arisen following a deregistration. Given that 
only the existing provider is able to deregister a residential home the market 
for this type of requirement is different to that which is capable of delivering 
comparatively straight forward requirements under HADSOM in that it 
requires the provider not only to be able to deliver domiciliary care but also 
to have a residential home which they are willing to deregister in the first 
place. Therefore, it is appropriate that a separate procurement process be 
employed for this differing requirement and market. Furthermore, not all 
residential care providers (who are also Domiciliary Care providers) sought 
to join HADSOM as its focus is the provision of support in the home and 
community, not residential care which was expressly excluded.  

Page 22



 

 

19. This report proposes the County Council re-procures the bespoke 
procurement vehicle under the Light Touch Regulations (LTR) which 
facilitates partnership working between the County Council and deregistering 
providers and allows for the award of care and support contracts following 
deregistration to the existing provider. This Hampshire Deregistration 
Partnership Register (HDPR) is a hybrid with features from the framework 
and dynamic purchasing system vehicles under the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015. Providers would apply for their homes to be registered on 
the HDPR and, providing the home meets the selection criteria, the County 
Council would then be able to work with that provider to deregister or close 
and re-provide the home or a cluster of homes, realise savings in the care 
contract and provide the benefits to service users described 

20. The LTR permits authorities to take in to account any relevant 
considerations including the specific needs of different categories of service 
users and the involvement and empowerment of service users. This enables 
service user choice to form part of the award criteria and would be taken into 
account in conditions for awarding contracts under the HDPR. The HDPR 
would include provisions for arrangements for situations where service users 
are able to make the decisions and where Best Interest decisions are 
required for service users who lack the relevant mental capacity to make the 
decision.  

21. Contracts awarded under the HDPR would be conditional on the provider 
providing satisfactory evidence of deregistration or closure of their residential 
care home and the provider being registered with the Care Quality 
Commission to provide domiciliary care (care in people’s own homes), upon 
evidence that the service users have been granted tenancies and 
appropriate confirmation of service user wishes or Best Interest decisions in 
respect of continuing to receive care and support from their existing provider. 

22. A full description of how the HDPR would operate, including timescales for 
its implementation, is provided at Appendix C. It is proposed that the HDPR 
remain in place for an initial period of 4 years with an option to extend for up 
to a further 4 years, giving a maximum potential term of eight years with the 
County Council reserving the right to terminate during that time.  

23. There may be rare instances where a provider wishes to deregister a 
residential home but does not wish to retain the care business following 
deregistration. In these exceptional cases the HDPR would not be the 
appropriate route to manage the deregistration. Instead, the care contract 
would be called off from HADSOM by way of a mini competition process in 
accordance with its terms and conditions. 

 
Finance 
24. Approval to re-purpose spend of £200 million is sought. This spend 

represents about 1/6 of the total current spend on residential care. This 
should be considered a maximum spend limit as it is anticipated that actual 
spend would be below this level. The spend limit of £200 million is within the 
department’s existing approved budget and therefore does not represent 
new spend. The request is not for new spend but for the re-purposing of 

Page 23



 

 

existing spend from the residential care budget to the supported living 
budget with finance moving with the same service users as de- regiatrstion 
progresses. This would facilitate a move from more expensive residential 
care costs to lower supported living costs of care for individuals. 

25. The care and support contract length of 10 years stated above would be the 
maximum length for any contract awarded under the HDPR. However, 
contracts of this length would not automatically be awarded, and the length 
of each contract would be determined on a case-by-case basis.  

26. The price payable by the County Council under each contract under the 
HDPR would be determined by benchmarking rates requested by providers 
with other local contracts and any other contracts held by that provider. 
Consideration would also be given to the specific circumstances of the 
contract.      

 
Performance 

27. The support and care contracts awarded as part of the deregistration 
process would be based on substantially the same terms and conditions as 
call off contracts awarded under HADSOM. This ensures that in terms of 
KPIs and performance measures they would be in line with existing 
contracts for supported accommodation schemes already awarded under 
HADSOM. This means consistency across all such schemes. It also means 
that both providers and operational staff are clear on the aims, objectives 
and requirements of the services and the provider may be more easily held 
to account for poor performance. 

28. Utilisation of terms similar to the HADSOM call off terms and conditions also 
means that deregistered scheme would be paid using the Provider Payment 
Generator (PPG) system.  

 
Legal  
29. Legal Advice is contained in exempt appendix 1. 
 
Consultation and Equalities 
30. The deregistration project is aligned with the County Council as part of the 

development of the Learning Disability (LD) Plan, in particular the” The Right 
Place to Live” section which is concerned with services users having 
appropriate accommodation options. The Plan makes it clear that service 
users would prefer increased independence and security of tenure in their 
accommodation and supported living fulfils this need more effectively than 
residential care is able to.  

31. Development of the LD Plan was primarily driven by service users 
themselves through the LD Partnership Board and Local Implementation 
Group network working with the County Council as well as a range of 
stakeholders including a range of provider organisations. An integral part of 
developing the LD Plan included extensive consultation with all parties 
involved and the primary driving force behind the Plan was service users 

Page 24



 

 

themselves via the LD Partnership Board and the Local Implementation 
Group network. It is therefore correct to say that consultation on the need for 
additional supported living accommodation rather than residential care has 
already taken place both with service users and providers.  

32. While broad consultation has taken place as part of the development of the 
LD Plan it would also be necessary to undertake individual consultations 
with the service users and their families residing in schemes to be 
deregistered or re-provided.  

33. An Equality Impact Assessment was carried out on for this report in 
September 2022.It identified that the deregistration project is likely to have a 
high impact on individuals with a learning disability based on the fact that 
this would represent a significant change to the basis on which they reside in 
their accommodation. The overall impact would be positive for those 
individuals affected as ultimately, they would have more property rights, 
increased access to benefits and more independence. However, it is 
accepted that some service users may initially feel unsettled by the changes. 
The impact would be limited to those individuals who are residing at a 
property at the time it deregisters and would not extend to those living or 
receiving services elsewhere.  

 
Climate Impact Assessment  
34. Hampshire County Council utilises two decision-making tools to assess the 

carbon emissions and resilience of its projects and decisions. These tools 
provide a clear, robust, and transparent way of assessing how projects, 
policies and initiatives contribute towards the County Council’s climate 
change targets of being carbon neutral and resilient to the impacts of a 2℃ 
temperature rise by 2050. This process ensures that climate change 
considerations are built into everything the Authority does. 

35. The aim of the HDPR is to encourage the de-registration of registered care 
homes to supported accommodation environments. This re-purposing of 
existing buildings would reduce the requirement for new supported living 
buildings and related environmental impacts. As existing registered care 
homes, the change to supported living would not ordinarily lead to a 
requirement for significant numbers of additional care workers and therefore 
there would be minimal impacts in regard to road traffic in local areas. Site 
selection for de-registration would also explicitly consider local transport links 
to ensure that service users have access to the community thereby also 
supporting sustainable models of transport for staff. 

36. Any new building developments undertaken in relation to the HDPR would be 
subject to usual environmental assessments and controls.  

 
Future direction 
37. Prior to their future expiry, all care contracts awarded under the HDPR would 

be retendered in accordance with Contract Standing Orders and legislation 
in force at that time. This would be appropriately timed to ensure continuity 
of service for the service users.  

Page 25



 

 

Conclusion  
38. Re-procuring the Hampshire De-registration Partnership Register would 

enable the County Council to continue to support this approach to improving 
outcomes for Younger Adults with disabilities. It supports the progress 
towards reducing the number of adults with disabilities living in residential 
care homes and increase the number living in supported living. Enabling a 
broader range of options for supporting the de-registration through changing 
provision would increase the amount of better-quality accommodation 
available for younger adults with disabilities. 

   

Page 26



 

 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable 
economic growth and prosperity: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and 
independent lives: 

Yes  

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

Yes  

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

Yes  

 

Other Significant Links 
Links to previous Member decisions:  
 
Deregistration of Learning Disability Residential Care 
Homes 

Date 
July 2016 

 

 

 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
 
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or 
an important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published 
works and any documents which disclose exempt or confidential 
information as defined in the Act.) 
 
Document Location 
None  

 

 

  

Page 27



 

 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 

1. Equality Duty 
1.1 The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 

(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

• Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, 
sex and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

• Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons 
who do not share it.  

1.2 Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

• The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 
sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

• Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not 
share it; 

• Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by 
such persons is disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 
2.1 EIA has been updated  

Identified Groups: People with disabilities  

Impact Level: High  

The Hampshire Deregistration Partnership Register is aimed at enabling 
individuals, predominantly with learning disabilities, but could also apply to other 
groups of Service Users with a disability, to have the opportunity to hold their own 
tenancy for the accommodation they live in. In residential care individuals have 
fewer rights to their accommodation and can be given 28 days' notice by the 
owner of the care home. The process of deregistration enables the care home to 
become Supported Accommodation. Each individual would cease to be a resident 
of a care home and would become a tenant of the property with all the rights that 

Page 28



 

 

this confers. Individuals would also have access to the full range of Benefits to 
which they are entitled and therefore would have more income that they can 
choose how to spend. 

Identified Groups: Marriage and Civil Partnerships 

Impact Level: Medium 

Individuals currently living in residential care may face more challenges regarding 
having relationships and getting married. The deregistration of the care home and 
the resultant change in status of the individuals once they have a tenancy may 
afford individuals greater opportunities for marriage or civil partnerships 

Identified Groups: Race 

Impact Level: 

For individuals currently living on registered care who have particular needs 
related to their race, the deregistration of the care home would result in the 
individual having more choice and control over their life and therefore would have 
greater flexibility and increased choice to meet their cultural needs. 

Identified Groups: Poverty 

Impact Level: Medium 

Individuals living in residential care homes only have access to a small weekly 
allowance and their PIP mobility allowance. Once a Care Home has deregistered 
individuals are entitled to the full range of Benefits to which they are entitled. 

Identified Groups: Religion 

Impact Level: Medium 

For individuals currently living on registered care who have particular needs 
related to their religion or belief, the deregistration of the care home would result 
in the individual having more choice and control over their life and therefore would 
have greater flexibility and increased choice to meet their spiritual needs 

 

Page 29



 

 

DETAILED OVERVIEW OF PROCESS 
 

1 Background 

1.1 The proposed approach is to re-procure the current Hampshire 
Deregistration Partnership Register, a bespoke procurement vehicle 
specifically designed for the purpose of establishing and developing 
partnerships with providers in residential care in Hampshire in order to 
deregister their care homes and convert them to supported living schemes, in 
accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) 
Light Touch Regime (LTR). Supported living is widely recognised as a more 
beneficial model for service users than residential care.  

1.2 The County Council recognises that while it is the purchaser of care and 
support on behalf of service users, the decision to deregister is solely within 
the purview of the provider but that it is beneficial to the provider, the County 
Council and the service users involved for both organisations to work 
together during the deregistration process. This allows the County Council to 
ensure that the resulting supported living service is sufficient to meet the 
needs of the service users and provides value for money. 

1.3 The County Council also recognises that it is not in providers’ interests to 
deregister a service if they would subsequently lose the care and support 
work. This makes the process financially disadvantageous to the provider 
and would result in very few providers being willing to deregister their 
properties. Furthermore, it is important for service users to experience the 
minimum disruption to their service during the deregistration process in order 
to minimise anxiety. Therefore, it is key to this process that the residential 
care provider retains the care and support work following deregistration.       

1.4 For these reasons, the bespoke procurement vehicle is one designed to 
allow the County Council to work with providers in order to deregister their 
properties and retain the care and support work once deregistration is 
complete. 

1.5 The replacement vehicle would continue to be called the Hampshire 
Deregistration Partnership Register (HDPR).  

2 The Approach 
2.1 The LTR allows the development, implementation and use of bespoke 

procurement vehicles which do not need to conform to the detailed 
procedural rules of the standard procedures set out in the Public 
Procurement Regulations 2015 when certain types of services are being 
procured, including care and support services. 

2.2 Under this approach, the proposed bespoke procurement vehicle would 
continue to be a hybrid of a framework and dynamic purchasing system 
under the Regulations. The contract value would be over the light touch 

Page 30



 

 

threshold which would require the following mandatory requirements to be 
followed: 

2.2.1 the opportunity is advertised by way of a contract notice on the Find 
a Tender service or a call for competition by way of a prior 
information notice; 

2.2.2 the publication of a contract award notice following the award of 
providers to the HDPR; 

2.2.3 compliance with the principles of transparency and equal treatment;  

2.2.4 conduct of the procurement in conformance with the information 
provided in the Find a Tender contract notice or prior information 
notice; and 

2.2.5 the time limits for providers to respond to adverts and tenders must 
be reasonable and proportionate. 

2.3 In relation to the award of contacts, the LTR permits authorities to take in to 
account any relevant considerations including the specific needs of different 
categories of service users and the involvement and empowerment of 
service users. This enables service user choice to form part of the award 
criteria under such a bespoke procurement vehicle. On this basis care and 
support contracts have the potential to be awarded directly to deregistering 
providers. 

 2.4 The flowchart on the following page illustrates a simplified process of how 
the HDPR would operate and the process which would be followed in order to 
deregister residential homes signed up to it. 

 

                                         

 

                      

      

                     

                     

          

                   

 

Page 31



 

 

    

 
     

                   

 

     

                  

 

                  

 

Simplified HDPR - Provider Process

Provider identifies Property/s they would 
like to deregister to County Council 

Commissioners

Provider completes deregistration self 
assessment on HDPR for each property

If all criteria met Property accepted onto 
HDPR

Provider works through deregistration 
process with Commissioners

On confirmation that Residential Home 
is closed or Deregistered Contract is 

awarded to Provider for Care and 
Support

Simplified Process for Residents

Consultation with Landlords - ensure 
separation of Landlord and Care 

functions - ensure Landlord is agreeable 
to deregistration

Consultation with Residents and their 
families and information provided

Care Act Assessments and Mental 
Capacity Assessments completed with 

individuals and their families

Referral to CQC for Deregistration or 
Referral to CQC for Registration of new 

Supported Living Service

Staff training and ongoing information 
sharing with individuals and families

Confirmation of change of status 
received from CQC

Page 32



 

 

2.5 The key features that result from this process are that Consultation is key 
with all partners; the assessment of the Mental Capacity of the residents to 
understand the de-registration, sign a tenancy and make a decision about 
who provides their care; that the Landlord is signed up and is separate from 
the Care Provider. If any resident lacks capacity to make a decision about 
who provides their care a best interest decision would be made but would 
always involve a third party who is independent from the Care Provider or 
the County Council 

2.6 In essence the HDPR would operate as an inclusive list with all providers 
who sign homes up to it being given the opportunity to work with the 
County Council in order to deregister or re-provide their properties and be 
awarded a care and support contract thereafter.  

2.7 The HDPR would not operate a competitive procedure to select which 
home or homes to work with next but rather this would be governed by a 
master timeline which sets out which home(s) would be approached when 
and is developed in consultation with providers to ensure the process is fair 
and transparent.  

3 Criteria 

3.1 The table below sets out the criteria homes must meet in order to be 
accepted onto the HDPR: 

Category Criteria Required to Pass 
Home Info Number of Placements 5 places or less 
 Occupancy 80% or more 
 Number of HCC residents 

and residents funded by 
partnership authorities1  

80% or more HCC and 
partnership authority 
residents 

Property Info If the provider owns the 
property: 
Is there a plan in place to 
separate the landlord and 
care provider functions 

Yes 

 If the provider does not own 
the property: 
Is the landlord supportive of 
the proposed deregistration? 

Yes 

 If the provider does not own 
the property: 
Does the landlord guarantee 
to issue tenancies to the 
service users 

Yes 

 Is the property fit for purpose 
now and in the future?  Yes/No 

Page 33



 

 

 If no, then: 
Is the provider willing and 
able to source an alternative 
provision or to work with the 
Council to secure an 
alternative provision to 
replace the unfit property? 

Yes 

 Does the provider guarantee 
that the residential care 
home will be de-
commissioned and will not 
be re-used by them as a 
residential care home now 
and in the future? 

Yes 

 Does the provider accept 
that any re-provision 
opportunity will replace the 
current provision with no 
greater increase in capacity 
than 10%? 

Yes 

 Will the provider guarantee 
to take responsibility for 
supporting service users to 
move to the new provision 
and supporting their families 
through the transition? 

Yes 

CQC Does the provider already 
have the relevant CQC 
registration to provide 
domiciliary care at the 
property? 
If not:  
Does the provider undertake 
to obtain the relevant 
registration prior to 
deregistration? 

Yes 

Safeguarding & 
History 

Are there any current or 
historic safeguarding issues 
with the residential service? 

No  
(But see below) 

 Are there any current or 
historic quality issues with 
the residential service? 

No 
(But see below) 

 If “Yes” to either: If the provider has 
answered Yes to either 
of the above questions, 

Page 34



 

 

Is there certainty that these 
issues will not put the future 
service at risk? 

then they must answer 
No to this question 

Service Users In the provider’s opinion, are 
the service users suited to 
living together? 

Yes 

 In the provider’s opinion, are 
the service users happy to 
continue living together? 

Yes 

Rates Does the provider undertake 
to adhere to the specified 
rate ranges and signify their 
agreement that higher rates 
may only be agreed in 
exceptional circumstances 
where there is clear evidence 
to support this? 

Yes 

1 The County Council currently has partnership arrangements with Southampton City Council, HIOW ICB and Surrey County Council and 

for the purposes of deregistration would treat service users funded by these authorities as if they were HCC service users. 

3.2 The County Council reserves the right to amend the criteria as it deems 
appropriate during the life of the HDPR. This may include for example 
taking account of new partnership arrangements with other authorities, 
reducing the requirements around occupancy or increasing the maximum 
number of placements within a home. Any such changes would be made 
only in order to increase the number of homes the County Council is able to 
work with and would be made public at the earliest opportunity. 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

Agenda Item 4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Demand Management and Prevention Grant Award
	HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Decision Report
	Purpose of this Report
	1.	The purpose of this report is to seek approval for making a grant award to the voluntary and community organisations outlined in this report as part of the Demand Management and Prevention Programme.
	Recommendation(s)
	2.	That approval be given by the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health for the following actions:
	i)	To award grants totalling £119,207 to cover a range of time periods between December 2022 and March 2024 as part of the Local Solutions Fund (as detailed in appendix A).
	Executive Summary
	3.	This report seeks to…
	Contextual information
	Background
	4.	The Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) contributes to improving people’s quality of life. The grants programme is one of the ways in which the County Council supports the sector to support people to live fuller more independent lives.
	5.	A voluntary organisation may be considered for grant aid from the County Council only if its services, projects or activities are in compliance with the aims and objectives, priorities and policies of the County Council.
	6.	Grants are awarded to support services that are better provided by the voluntary sector e.g. the mobilisation of community resources to help vulnerable people maintain their independence.
	7.	A grant is defined as a sum of money to support a particular activity.  It does not usually cover the entire cost of the activity and it is legally considered to be a one-sided gift, rather than a payment in exchange for services.
	8.	Voluntary and community organisations provide valuable locally based services that are often rooted in the communities which they serve.  Significant benefit is produced through this activity, often through voluntary action and focused towards activity that clearly assists in providing early intervention and prevention initiatives.  Grant funding by the County Council contributes to, and helps sustain, this activity.
	9.	As grants are a contribution to service or activity costs the economic benefit to the department can be significant, levering in additional funding, the benefit of volunteer time and therefore providing good value for money to the authority.
	10.	Organisations will not normally be eligible for grants where they hold balances in excess of one year's running costs.  Those organisations receiving recurring funding which hold in excess of three months' running costs, and where they cannot demonstrate through their reserves policy that these reserves are justified, may receive a reduced grant.  To establish the level of reserves, organisations are required to provide a set of their latest accounts and annual report with their application and before grant payment is made – in the case of organisations with an income of £10,000 or above, these must be independently examined or audited.  If organisations have reserves in excess of three months, we will apply the reserves policy which is in line with the Charity Commission’s policy on these matters.
	Demand and Prevention Programme
	11.	Prevention, incorporating Demand Management is one of the three key areas identified to achieve the Vision of Adults’ Health and Care, as detailed in the Adult’s Health and Care Strategy.
	12.	The Demand Management and Prevention work will build on people’s strengths, enabling them to improve their health and take more personal responsibility for looking after themselves with support from their family, friends and community network. The Council will encourage this by making the healthy choice the easy choice and developing accessible, inclusive and readily available information and advice services. The Council will also carry out targeted prevention work for certain groups of people who are most at risk of poor health to keep them well and to avoid or delay the need for social care services. The Council will work with partners, in particular the NHS, GPs and the Voluntary sector to achieve the above aims.
	Local Solutions Grant
	13.	It is recognised that across Hampshire there are local initiatives, support networks and services achieving positive outcomes for adults every day. A strength-based approach values these local provisions and seeks to enable them to further develop, be sustained and grow. This approach recognises that the County Council is often not the only, or the best, source of help for local people.
	14.	Local Solutions Grants seek to fund projects, which over time will reduce the demand seen on Hampshire County Council statutory services and support participants to live healthy and independent lives for as long as possible. Grants are awarded to projects operating in a specific location with one off funding given. All Local Solutions applicants are expected to demonstrate how the project will be sustained in the long term, beyond the life of the grant.
	15.	Services developed though the Local Solutions locality focused approach, are likely to enable early prevention support, as well as shaping options which may be attractive alternatives to some traditional services currently available for individuals, carers and families. The prioritisation of localities to focus upon within this approach has been informed by data on demographics, existing and projected social care demand, and feedback from stakeholders. This will help to ensure that local people have effective support available now and into the future.
	16.	The focus and criteria for each Local Solution Grant has been shaped by engagement with local stakeholders. This engagement has informed identification of the local priorities, the outcomes which are important to be achieved and the potential type of solution which could be developed. They are also aligned to the NHS programme to support self-management, which assists individuals to remain independent and minimising their need for social care. Some grants are more specific in what is being asked to be delivered and others outline more generally the focus of the change required. Across all, it will be looked for the successful bidder(s) to ensure local insight and expertise continue to shape the support and services as they further develop, in order to deliver positive outcomes. Local stakeholders and local Adults’ Health and Care Community Teams were involved in the decision making to ensure that the grants recommended meet the community need.
	17.	A rolling program of engagement events have taken place across 2022 and will continue into early 2023. With the aim of ensuring all voluntary sector organisations are aware of the Local Solutions fund, these events are also an opportunity to support organisations with the Local Solutions fund process, ensuing there are no barriers in making an application.

	18.	In this paper Local Solutions grants are being proposed supporting older and vulnerable adults with a range of bespoke solutions and services across numerous localities in Hampshire. The grants within this paper reflect the innovation, flexibility and project sustainability which are characteristic of Local Solutions application and full details of the grants being proposed are contained below.
	Grants For Consideration (additional Information in Appendix A)
	19. 	New Forest Disability (£29,000 for a duration of 12 months). A project offering practical and emotional support to New Forest residents on discharge from Lymington Hospital. This project aims to ensure that upon discharge all users of the service have a robust plan in place for transition back to independent living within their own homes, and collaboration with all necessary community organisations to provide the best quality long term support.

	20.	The Vine Centre (£28,207 for a duration of 12 months). A project delivering for isolated older adults at increased risk of formal social care intervention across the districts of Hart and Rushmoor. Centred around digital upskilling and support, the project will deliver both online and face to face support to build people's confidence, support networks and ensure they are empowered to reconnect to their communities and the support available to them there. Repurposed technology will be provided for first time users to ensure nobody is excluded from the service.
	21.	Citizens Advice Hart (£27,000 for a duration of 12-16 months). A project which will enhance the current Citizens Advice offer and increase accessibility to those with limited or restricted mobility. Funding will enable the creation of local support hubs and an outreach program to residents who are housebound or with limited mobility to ensure that all residents are able to receive the support they require.
	22.	Unity Ltd (£24,000 for a duration of 16 months). A project centred around pre-existing allotments which will fund a range of social activities aimed at adults aged 75+ with increased risks of requiring formal social care intervention. Activities will be driven by the interests and needs of those participating and seek to build resilience through increased friendship and support networks and improving participants emotional and physical health.
	23.	Community First (£11,000 for a duration of 12 months). A project to be run by a coordinator and a team of volunteers to work with participants in group and one to one sessions across a range of locations. Sessions are structured to provide practical solutions to barriers which participants have to living independently and safely in their own homes and link with HCC Teams and Health Partners to reach those most in need of the service.
	Finance
	24.	The grant proposal in this report will commit additional expenditure totalling £119,207 over the financial years 2022/23 and 2023/24. Subject to approval of this report the total grants committed for payment will remain within the agreed, (2022/23 & 2023/24) annual budget envelopes for the Demand Management and Prevention Programme.
	25.	Payments will be made in 2 instalments for all grants approved in this report. All Grant Agreements have conditions that enable the County Council to require repayment of the award or any part of it if it remains unspent at the end of the grant period, or if there is a material breach of the grant agreement.
	Performance
	26.	The provision of grants to voluntary and community sector organisations by statutory bodies always presents a degree of risk.  Specific risks that statutory bodies are required to manage include voluntary and community organisations accepting funding without providing any activity; organisations not delivering the service as expected; and there being an under spend on the expected activity.  This applies to all grants however larger grants represent a potentially higher risk to the County Council.
	27.	A number of mechanisms have been employed successfully over a number of years to mitigate and alleviate these risks.  These include nominating a liaison officer from the County Council whose responsibility is to monitor how the grant is spent, specifying within the grant agreement that the grant is ‘restricted’ funding for the provision of the specified activity only and phasing the payment of grants over the course of the award duration.
	28.	A comprehensive evaluation assessment tool has been developed and is in use for the beneficiaries of previous grant rounds, ensuring consistency of data capture.
	29.	All organisations awarded a grant sign a declaration stating they accept that grant funding can only be awarded for the given period and no commitment exists from the County Council to continue funding after this time, or in subsequent years.
	Consultation and Equalities
	30.	It is for the Executive Member as decision maker to have due regard to the need to: eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under the Equality Act and advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
	31.	All grants included for consideration in this report represent additional facilities and services for those they serve, and a full Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed to capture the benefits for each group.
	32.	Through provision of these grants and the completion of the EIA positive impacts have been identified for residents with disabilities and those in financial hardship and poverty. The grants proposed for funding seek to increase the provision for those who identify with these protected characteristics and increase the services which are available to them. Other protected characteristics have been assessed and the grants offer a neutral impact, with no negative impacts expected for any characteristic.
	Climate Impact Assessment
	33.	Hampshire County Council utilises two decision-making tools to assess the carbon emissions and resilience of its projects and decisions. These tools provide a clear, robust, and transparent way of assessing how projects, policies and initiatives contribute towards the County Council’s climate change targets of being carbon neutral and resilient to the impacts of a 2℃ temperature rise by 2050. This process ensures that climate change considerations are built into everything the Authority does.
	34.	A full assessment of climate change vulnerability was not completed as the initial vulnerability assessment showed that the project is at minimal risk from the climate vulnerabilities because the projects delivered will be operated from premised not owned by the County Council or the organisation in receipt of the grant.
	Conclusions

	35.	The Local Solutions Grant continues to offer local organisations in the voluntary and community sector, the opportunity to fund their projects to the benefit of local residents in a local way to address the specific needs of communities in each district. The grants proposed in this paper have a range of benefits and outcomes, but all seek, as a minimum to reduce social isolation and loneliness and connect participants to their local communities and support networks.

	REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:
	Links to the Strategic Plan
	Other Significant Links
	EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:
	1.	Equality Duty
	1.1	The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
	-	Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);
	-	Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;
	-	Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.
	1.2	Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
	-	The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
	-	Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
	-	Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionally low.

	2.	Equalities Impact Assessment:
	The award of grants to the voluntary and community sector to support people to live long, healthy and happy lives with the maximum possible independence, as part of the demand management and prevention programme and in-line with Adult’s Health and Care Strategy 2018.  Grants in this paper: Local Solutions Grants, covering the districts of New Forest, Rushmoor, Hart, Test Valley and Winchester for a period December 2022 – December 2023. Total Pot: £119,207
	Geographical impact: Grants in this paper are recommended for award, which if approved will provide additional services, beyond what is already available in the districts of: New Forest, Rushmoor, Hart, Test Valley and Winchester
	Proposed Change: The grants proposed in this paper all represent new services which were not previously funded and therefore are of additional benefit to those they seek to serve.
	The Local Solutions fund continues to offer funding to projects which support a diverse range of Hampshire residents, and does so in collaboration with Social Care Teams, health partners and the community and voluntary sector.
	As a result of the proposals contained within this Executive Member Decision Report we do not anticipate any changes to service provision, rather these are extensions to existing services or new services which were not previously available.
	Will the proposed project/service change affect people in the protected characteristics groups or any of the other groups for consideration? Yes
	Who does this impact assessment cover?: All
	Has engagement or consultation been carried out?: Yes



	2 Appointments to Outside Bodies: Partnership Boards
	3 Deregistration of Younger Adults Residential Care Homes - Renewal of the Hampshire Deregistration Partnership Register
	HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Decision Report
	1.	The purpose of this paper is to seek approval to re-procure the Hampshire Deregistration Partnership Register (HDPR), a bespoke procurement solution procured under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 Light Touch Regime (‘LTR’) to facilitate Hampshire County Council working with residential care providers to effect, the deregistration of residential care homes for younger adults and to provide for the award of care and support contracts.
	2.	This paper is also to seek permission for maximum spend under the HDPR.
	Recommendations
	3.	That the Executive Member for Adult Services and Public Health approve:
	a)	the re-procurement of a bespoke procurement vehicle for the facilitation of deregistration or re-provision of Younger Adults Residential Care with a maximum duration of 8 years on a 4+4 years basis.
	b)	the spend of up to £200 million under the procurement vehicle for care and support contracts with a maximum term of 10 years on an initial period of 5 years plus options with flexibility for yearly extensions or multiples up to a maximum of five years (10 years in total).

	Executive Summary
	4.	This report sets out:
		the context of the HDPR
		links to the transformation agenda
		how de-registration works and suggest opportunities for improving the options and outcomes for de-registration
		the procurement process
		the financial implications of the HDPR

	Contextual information
	5.	Deregistration of residential care homes is an option available to all providers of residential care subject to the approval of the Care Quality Commission (CQC). The HDPR is a means by which the County Council can ask registered care homeowners if they are interested in deregistering those care homes and may wish to enter into a care and support contract with the County Council to continue providing the care and support as ‘supported accommodation’ once the home is deregistered. Any regulated care activity subsequently required would then be provided under a domiciliary (home) care registration with the CQC.
	6.      To date 10 residential care homes have been deregistered through the previous HDPR. There have been some challenges which have impacted on the programme including engagement from landlords, provider resource issues, the Care Quality Commission process for de-registration and impact of the pandemic. There remains an appetite from providers to engage in deregistration of care homes. Having reviewed the current arrangements there are some changes that could be made that it is felt would assist the process and improve the outcome.
	7.	Hampshire Adult Services’ current external spend on residential and nursing care for younger adults is £67 million per annum (Learning Disability - £47 million, Physical Disability - £11 million and Mental Health £9 million). The department has been working for the past 7 years to reduce the number of younger adults with eligible care needs living in residential care with some success. However, there remains a significant population, particularly of people with a learning disability, living in residential care.
	8.	Service users in residential care have fewer accommodation rights and less access to benefits than those in supported accommodation. Care home residents have no security of tenure in their accommodation (most are subject to 28 days' notice) and are entitled only to a relatively small amount of money for themselves each week. Conversely, service users who reside in supported accommodation hold tenancies and have access to a range of housing and other benefits, allowing them increased independence in the management of their own homes and finances. This model has scope to be more enabling and supportive of independence than residential care.
	9.	There is still a significant population of people, particularly with learning disabilities, living in small scale community-based homes which are registered as residential care but could operate as supported accommodation giving the service users the opportunities described above. A proportion of these properties are not fit for the future. A change of model can provide the opportunity for re-development of these Services.
	Transformation Agenda
	10.	In addition to the above, the Younger Adults Directorate is tasked with delivering approximately £22.5 millions of savings as part of the Savings Programme 2023 (SP23). Residential care, in addition to being less enabling, can be more expensive than community-based accommodation and support models such as supported accommodation due to the inclusion of hotel and management costs (the overheads associated with running a building and operating a business). The County Council has identified reduction in residential care placements in favour of such community-based accommodation and support models as a key driver in achieving these savings. This element of the Savings Programme has delivered in line with expected contributions over the savings programmes since 2017.
	11.	Deregistration has been a relatively small part of this for the reasons stated above. A lot of the properties originally identified to be part of this process therefore remain as residential care homes and as such there remains a latent opportunity for further efficiencies. Re-procuring the HDPR and improving the offer would encourage more providers to come forward to support deregistration.
	12.  	A key change for the new HDPR would be to increase the care and support services contract length in line with contracts being offered under the procurement framework for younger adults supported accommodation (Hampshire Accommodation Development and Support Options Model (HADSOM)) which is up to 10 years on a 5 + up to 5 more basis. This increases the attractiveness of the offer and provides more certainty and security for providers, particularly if they are carrying out works on or replacing a property. This also gives greater assurance to service users and their families at a time where they would experience significant change.
	13.   Another key change is to expand the scope of the deregistration scheme to allow for the closure of the residential home and the re-provision of the property on a more or less like for like basis where there is an opportunity to improve the quality of accommodation. This could include replacing a 4-bedroom 2 storey house with one shared bathroom, with a 4-bedroom bungalow with ensuite bathrooms for example or replacing a 3-bedroom shared house and a 4-bedroom shared house with a block of 8 individual one-bedroom flats.
	14.	The County Council recognises there is a continued need for residential care in some circumstances and will be developing a Residential Care Strategy for Younger Adults over the coming months. Encouraging the deregistration of services that do not need to be residential care will be integral to this strategy and approach.

	Deregistration Approach
	15.	Deregistration is the process by which a residential care provider transforms a residential care home into a supported accommodation model. This involves terminating the property’s registration with Care Quality Commission as a residential home, the separation of landlord and care functions and the provision of tenancies to service users so that the property may be properly classified as their home rather than simply the address at which they reside. This in turn gives service users security of tenure in their accommodation and access to a much wider range of benefits in order to cover housing and living costs previously included in the residential placement fee. The separation of the landlord and care functions is a key element of deregistration as once a service user gains tenancy rights they have the right to remain in their home even if the care provider changes.
	16.	The decision to deregister a residential care home rests entirely with the provider and in order for providers to consider deregistering their homes they must ensure it is financially viable. Providers who have de-registered to date have been accepting of a contract for up to 7 years. A longer period may encourage more providers, particularly larger organisations, to undertake deregistration. Additionally, retention of the care business by the current provider allows for continuity of service for those service users involved in deregistration.
	17.	The intention of the new HDPR would be to expand the scope of opportunity for residential homes to be re-provided in alternative and improved settings as well as being deregistered in the traditional way. This approach is required as a proportion of the properties that would be in scope for deregistration older properties and are not fit for the future needs of existing residents or future residents. This re-provision opportunity would be restricted to ensure that providers were not able to unfairly increase the scope of their business and would require the closure of the residential establishment from which they were decanting. It is recognised that service users and particularly their families find change difficult and find changes less challenging if they continue to be supported by individuals and organisations with which they are familiar. The County Council would work with Providers to ensure any new properties were an improvement.
	18.	The County Council’s primary method for the purchase of care and support in a supported accommodation setting is via the Hampshire Accommodation Development and Support Options Model (HADSOM) which provides for the award of care contracts following a mini competition process. This procurement method presupposes that support is being procured for an existing supported living scheme or one which is entirely brand new rather than a requirement which has arisen following a deregistration. Given that only the existing provider is able to deregister a residential home the market for this type of requirement is different to that which is capable of delivering comparatively straight forward requirements under HADSOM in that it requires the provider not only to be able to deliver domiciliary care but also to have a residential home which they are willing to deregister in the first place. Therefore, it is appropriate that a separate procurement process be employed for this differing requirement and market. Furthermore, not all residential care providers (who are also Domiciliary Care providers) sought to join HADSOM as its focus is the provision of support in the home and community, not residential care which was expressly excluded.
	19.	This report proposes the County Council re-procures the bespoke procurement vehicle under the Light Touch Regulations (LTR) which facilitates partnership working between the County Council and deregistering providers and allows for the award of care and support contracts following deregistration to the existing provider. This Hampshire Deregistration Partnership Register (HDPR) is a hybrid with features from the framework and dynamic purchasing system vehicles under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. Providers would apply for their homes to be registered on the HDPR and, providing the home meets the selection criteria, the County Council would then be able to work with that provider to deregister or close and re-provide the home or a cluster of homes, realise savings in the care contract and provide the benefits to service users described
	20.	The LTR permits authorities to take in to account any relevant considerations including the specific needs of different categories of service users and the involvement and empowerment of service users. This enables service user choice to form part of the award criteria and would be taken into account in conditions for awarding contracts under the HDPR. The HDPR would include provisions for arrangements for situations where service users are able to make the decisions and where Best Interest decisions are required for service users who lack the relevant mental capacity to make the decision.
	21.	Contracts awarded under the HDPR would be conditional on the provider providing satisfactory evidence of deregistration or closure of their residential care home and the provider being registered with the Care Quality Commission to provide domiciliary care (care in people’s own homes), upon evidence that the service users have been granted tenancies and appropriate confirmation of service user wishes or Best Interest decisions in respect of continuing to receive care and support from their existing provider.
	22.	A full description of how the HDPR would operate, including timescales for its implementation, is provided at Appendix C. It is proposed that the HDPR remain in place for an initial period of 4 years with an option to extend for up to a further 4 years, giving a maximum potential term of eight years with the County Council reserving the right to terminate during that time.
	23.	There may be rare instances where a provider wishes to deregister a residential home but does not wish to retain the care business following deregistration. In these exceptional cases the HDPR would not be the appropriate route to manage the deregistration. Instead, the care contract would be called off from HADSOM by way of a mini competition process in accordance with its terms and conditions.

	Finance
	24.	Approval to re-purpose spend of £200 million is sought. This spend represents about 1/6 of the total current spend on residential care. This should be considered a maximum spend limit as it is anticipated that actual spend would be below this level. The spend limit of £200 million is within the department’s existing approved budget and therefore does not represent new spend. The request is not for new spend but for the re-purposing of existing spend from the residential care budget to the supported living budget with finance moving with the same service users as de- regiatrstion progresses. This would facilitate a move from more expensive residential care costs to lower supported living costs of care for individuals.
	25.	The care and support contract length of 10 years stated above would be the maximum length for any contract awarded under the HDPR. However, contracts of this length would not automatically be awarded, and the length of each contract would be determined on a case-by-case basis.
	26.	The price payable by the County Council under each contract under the HDPR would be determined by benchmarking rates requested by providers with other local contracts and any other contracts held by that provider. Consideration would also be given to the specific circumstances of the contract.
	Performance
	27.	The support and care contracts awarded as part of the deregistration process would be based on substantially the same terms and conditions as call off contracts awarded under HADSOM. This ensures that in terms of KPIs and performance measures they would be in line with existing contracts for supported accommodation schemes already awarded under HADSOM. This means consistency across all such schemes. It also means that both providers and operational staff are clear on the aims, objectives and requirements of the services and the provider may be more easily held to account for poor performance.
	28.	Utilisation of terms similar to the HADSOM call off terms and conditions also means that deregistered scheme would be paid using the Provider Payment Generator (PPG) system.

	Legal
	29.	Legal Advice is contained in exempt appendix 1.

	Consultation and Equalities
	30.	The deregistration project is aligned with the County Council as part of the development of the Learning Disability (LD) Plan, in particular the” The Right Place to Live” section which is concerned with services users having appropriate accommodation options. The Plan makes it clear that service users would prefer increased independence and security of tenure in their accommodation and supported living fulfils this need more effectively than residential care is able to.
	31.	Development of the LD Plan was primarily driven by service users themselves through the LD Partnership Board and Local Implementation Group network working with the County Council as well as a range of stakeholders including a range of provider organisations. An integral part of developing the LD Plan included extensive consultation with all parties involved and the primary driving force behind the Plan was service users themselves via the LD Partnership Board and the Local Implementation Group network. It is therefore correct to say that consultation on the need for additional supported living accommodation rather than residential care has already taken place both with service users and providers.
	32.	While broad consultation has taken place as part of the development of the LD Plan it would also be necessary to undertake individual consultations with the service users and their families residing in schemes to be deregistered or re-provided.
	33.	An Equality Impact Assessment was carried out on for this report in September 2022.It identified that the deregistration project is likely to have a high impact on individuals with a learning disability based on the fact that this would represent a significant change to the basis on which they reside in their accommodation. The overall impact would be positive for those individuals affected as ultimately, they would have more property rights, increased access to benefits and more independence. However, it is accepted that some service users may initially feel unsettled by the changes. The impact would be limited to those individuals who are residing at a property at the time it deregisters and would not extend to those living or receiving services elsewhere.
	Climate Impact Assessment

	34.	Hampshire County Council utilises two decision-making tools to assess the carbon emissions and resilience of its projects and decisions. These tools provide a clear, robust, and transparent way of assessing how projects, policies and initiatives contribute towards the County Council’s climate change targets of being carbon neutral and resilient to the impacts of a 2℃ temperature rise by 2050. This process ensures that climate change considerations are built into everything the Authority does.
	Future direction
	37.	Prior to their future expiry, all care contracts awarded under the HDPR would be retendered in accordance with Contract Standing Orders and legislation in force at that time. This would be appropriately timed to ensure continuity of service for the service users.
	Conclusion
	38.	Re-procuring the Hampshire De-registration Partnership Register would enable the County Council to continue to support this approach to improving outcomes for Younger Adults with disabilities. It supports the progress towards reducing the number of adults with disabilities living in residential care homes and increase the number living in supported living. Enabling a broader range of options for supporting the de-registration through changing provision would increase the amount of better-quality accommodation available for younger adults with disabilities.


	REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:
	Links to the Strategic Plan
	Other Significant Links
	EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:
	1.	Equality Duty
	1.1	The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
		Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);
		Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;
		Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.
	1.2	Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
		The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
		Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
		Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionally low.

	2.	Equalities Impact Assessment:
	2.1	EIA has been updated
	Identified Groups: People with disabilities
	Impact Level: High
	The Hampshire Deregistration Partnership Register is aimed at enabling individuals, predominantly with learning disabilities, but could also apply to other groups of Service Users with a disability, to have the opportunity to hold their own tenancy for the accommodation they live in. In residential care individuals have fewer rights to their accommodation and can be given 28 days' notice by the owner of the care home. The process of deregistration enables the care home to become Supported Accommodation. Each individual would cease to be a resident of a care home and would become a tenant of the property with all the rights that this confers. Individuals would also have access to the full range of Benefits to which they are entitled and therefore would have more income that they can choose how to spend.
	Identified Groups: Marriage and Civil Partnerships
	Impact Level: Medium
	Individuals currently living in residential care may face more challenges regarding having relationships and getting married. The deregistration of the care home and the resultant change in status of the individuals once they have a tenancy may afford individuals greater opportunities for marriage or civil partnerships
	Identified Groups: Race
	Impact Level:
	For individuals currently living on registered care who have particular needs related to their race, the deregistration of the care home would result in the individual having more choice and control over their life and therefore would have greater flexibility and increased choice to meet their cultural needs.
	Identified Groups: Poverty
	Impact Level: Medium
	Individuals living in residential care homes only have access to a small weekly allowance and their PIP mobility allowance. Once a Care Home has deregistered individuals are entitled to the full range of Benefits to which they are entitled.
	Identified Groups: Religion
	Impact Level: Medium
	For individuals currently living on registered care who have particular needs related to their religion or belief, the deregistration of the care home would result in the individual having more choice and control over their life and therefore would have greater flexibility and increased choice to meet their spiritual needs


	DETAILED OVERVIEW OF PROCESS

	4 Deregistration of Younger Adults Residential Care Homes - Renewal of the Hampshire Deregistration Partnership Register - Exempt Appendix

